
  TREATMENT DEPARTMENT STATUS REPORT 

April, 2020  

 

            BOD     TSS    

 

Faulkner Lake  3.5 mg/L (30 Max.)    3.0 mg/L (30 Max.) 

   

Maumelle   20.9 mg/L (30Max.)  13.6 mg/L (30 Max.) 

 

 

     CBOD   TSS 

 

Five Mile    11.5 mg/L (25 Max.)    10.5 mg/L (90 Max.) 

 

White Oak   10.3 mg/L (25 Max.) 21.2 mg/L (90 max.) 

 

 

 

Jaime Marrow 

Office Assistant II 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

    



Crews: Jan Feb Mar Apr May Y T D

MANHOLE:

Disconnects 5 5 4 0 14

Taps 0 0 0 2 2

Repairs 39 81 76 90 286

# of MH's Grouted 33 82 61 85 261

#of Coats 66 164 122 170 522

MH  Depth (Ft/In) 0.0 30.0 0.0 0 30

# of Bags of Grout 2 27 15 10 54

POWER DRIVE:

# of Ft  Cleaned 4,527 8,436 4,831 3,161 20,955

PWR RODDER #1:

# of Ft  Cleaned 0 0 0 0 0

REPAIR #1:

Repairs 4 1 2 4 11

New Manholes 0 0 0 0 0

New Lines 0 0 0 0 0

Disconnects 0 0 0 2 2

Taps 0 0 0 0 0

Miscellaneous 1 4 12 3 20

REPAIR #2:

Repairs 1 5 6 8 20

New Manholes 0 0 0 0 0

New Lines 0 0 0 0 0

Disconnects 0 0 1 0 1

Taps 0 0 0 0 0

Miscellaneous 6 7 6 6 25

REPAIR  #3:

Repairs 2 4 3 4 13

New Manholes 0 0 0 2 2

New Lines 0 0 1 0 1

Disconnects 0 0 1 3 4

Taps 0 0 0 1 1

Miscellaneous 4 4 6 2 16

REPAIR  #4:

Repairs 5 4 4 6 19

New Manholes 0 0 2 2 4

New Lines 0 0 0 0 0

Disconnects 0 0 0 0 0

Taps 0 0 0 0 0

Miscellaneous 11 9 7 4 31

TROUBLE:

# of Ft Cleaned 0 0 0 0 0

Stop-Ups 6 6 8 8 28

Private Lines 35 30 29 34 128

Cave-Ins 2 2 4 1 9

Flooded  Houses 0 0 0 0 0

Miscellaneous 47 44 34 76 201

Total  Calls 90 82 75 119 366

VACCON  #1:

# of  Ft  Cleaned 19,239 15,983 28,466 33,765 97,453

VACCON  #2:

# of  Ft  Cleaned 11,901 11,562 40,419 33,355 97,237

VACCON  #3:

# of  Ft  Cleaned 43,380 28,707 38,230 46,409 156,726

VACCON  #4:

# of  Ft  Cleaned 36,916 1,911 0 2,930 41,757

VACCON  #5:

# of  Ft  Cleaned 26,636 10,797 28,732 37,599 103,764

T V  #1

# of  Ft  16,584 16,511 24,438 23,914 81,447

T V  #2

# of  Ft  13,105 13,025 18,963 24,134 69,227

North Little Rock Wastewater Utility

2020 Year-To-Date Work Recap Report



Crews: Ward 0 Ward 1 Ward 2 Ward 3 Ward 4 Ward 5 Total

MANHOLE: Ward 0 Ward 1 Ward 2 Ward 3 Ward 4 Ward 5 Total

Disconnects 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Taps 0 0 1 1 0 0 2

Repairs 2 7 2 78 1 0 90

# of MH's Grouted 1 6 0 78 0 0 85

#of Coats 2 12 0 156 0 0 170

MH  Depth (Ft/In) 0.0 0.0 0 0 0 0 0

# of Bags of Grout 0 1 4 5 0 0 10

POWER DRIVE: Ward 0 Ward 1 Ward 2 Ward 3 Ward 4 Ward 5 Total

# of Ft  Cleaned 0 0 0 3,161 0 0 3,161

PWR RODDER #1: Ward 0 Ward 1 Ward 2 Ward 3 Ward 4 Ward 5 Total

# of Ft  Cleaned 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

REPAIR #1: Ward 0 Ward 1 Ward 2 Ward 3 Ward 4 Ward 5 Total

Repairs 0 1 1 0 1 1 4

New Manholes 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

New Lines 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Disconnects 0 0 2 0 0 0 2

Taps 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Miscellaneous 0 0 3 0 0 0 3

REPAIR #2: Ward 0 Ward 1 Ward 2 Ward 3 Ward 4 Ward 5 Total

Repairs 0 6 0 1 0 1 8

New Manholes 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

New Lines 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Disconnects 0 1 0 0 0 0 0

Taps 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Miscellaneous 1 3 0 1 0 1 6

REPAIR  #3: Ward 0 Ward 1 Ward 2 Ward 3 Ward 4 Ward 5 Total

Repairs 0 2 1 1 0 0 4

New Manholes 0 2 0 0 0 0 2

New Lines 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Disconnects 1 1 0 1 0 0 3

Taps 0 1 0 0 0 0 1

Miscellaneous 0 0 2 0 0 0 2

REPAIR  #4: Ward 0 Ward 1 Ward 2 Ward 3 Ward 4 Ward 5 Total

Repairs 0 5 0 1 0 0 6

New Manholes 0 2 0 0 0 0 2

New Lines 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Disconnects 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Taps 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Miscellaneous 0 3 1 0 0 0 4

TROUBLE: Ward 0 Ward 1 Ward 2 Ward 3 Ward 4 Ward 5 Total

# of Ft Cleaned 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Stop-Ups 0 2 2 2 2 0 8

Private Lines 2 8 11 6 2 5 34

Cave-Ins 0 0 1 0 0 0 1

Flooded  Houses 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Miscellaneous 2 32 22 8 3 9 76

Total  Calls 4 42 36 16 7 14 119

VACCON  #1: Ward 0 Ward 1 Ward 2 Ward 3 Ward 4 Ward 5 Total

# of  Ft  Cleaned 19,154 7,662 2,840 863 0 3,246 33,765

VACCON  #2:

# of  Ft  Cleaned 21,201 0 5,323 6,831 0 0 33,355

VACCON  #3:

# of  Ft  Cleaned 9,251 19,816 15,596 0 1,746 0 46,409

VACCON  #4:

# of  Ft  Cleaned 0 456 0 2,086 0 388 2,930

VACCON  #5:

# of  Ft  Cleaned 25,601 0 1,050 9,721 1,227 0 37,599

T V  #1

# of  Ft  14,800 6,558 1,415 156 84 901 23,914

T V  #2
# of  Ft  14,174 8,434 1,511 0 15 0 24,134

NLR Wastewater Utility

Maintenance & Repair Department
Work Recap by Ward

April-20
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                                     NORTH LITTLE ROCK WASTEWATER UTILITY  

7400 BAUCUM PIKE  PHONE  (501) 945-7186 
P.O. BOX 17898  FAX  (501) 945-3716 
NORTH LITTLE ROCK, AR 72117-0898 
 

  
 

Memorandum 

TO:   Marc Wilkins 

FROM:  Michael Clayton 

DATE:    05/07/20  

RE:   Engineering Department Major Projects Status 
 

 

South Levy Indian Hills Pipe Bursting 2017 Rehabilitation Project:  The Contractor has 
completed all but five line segments which the project is estimated to be 94% complete.  There 
are three difficult line segments left to rehabilitate in this project. 
 

South Levy Indian Hills CIPP 2017 Rehabilitation Project:  The Contractor has completed 
approximately 88% of the project.  Approximately 44,815 linear feet of pipe has been replaced 
with Cured In-Place Pipe. 
 

Lakewood Pipe Bursting 2019 Rehabilitation Project:  Work is underway and the Contractor 
has completed nearly one-half of the project.   
 

CMMS Project:  NLRW implementation staff has begun training in the CityWorks environment 
utilizing inspection and work order templates provided by True North.  This training included the 
creation, issuing, completion, and closing of work orders, inspection, and service requests as well 
as dashboard set up and administrative functions.  NLRW implementation staff has begun 
building crews and equipment profiles within CityWorks.  True North has set up our GIS test 
data in ESRI’s portal environment.  NLRW staff has modified our data to allow transition into 
the Local Government Information Model schema and the transition into the model is 
underway.  Staff anticipates having the data transition complete and to be editing the data in the 
new ESRI Portal environment in approximately two weeks. 
 
White Oak Access Road:  The roadway is under construction with approximately 20% 
complete.  Expected completion date is June 1, 2020. 
 
Upper Riverside Interceptor 2020 Rehabilitation Project:  The project is in the bidding stage 
and the bids will open on May 21, 2020. 
 
 



NORTH LITTLE ROCK WASTEWATER UTILITY 
 

Memorandum 
 

 

TO: Marc Wilkins 

FROM: Lyle Leubner 

DATE: 05/07/20 

RE: Treatment Status Report 
 

 

Faulkner Lake Influent VFD Replacement Project 
Existing 350 HP pump VFDs are failing and are no longer supported by the manufacturer.  Staff is 
working in conjunction with Crist Engineers to obtain the much needed updates including motor control 
center improvements, main disconnect replacement, and VFD replacement.  Staff has reviewed design 
drawings and our consultant is currently composing the project specifications.  Project will then be 
advertised for bids, and the results will be reported to the committee.  This project is included in the 2020 
budget. 
 
Faulkner Lake Effluent Parshall Flume Structure Project 
The effluent parshall flume was compromised during the 2019 flood and staff had to build a temporary 
plywood structure around the perimeter in order to prevent floodwater from inundating and 
overwhelming the high water lift station.  Since the structure was protected and not damaged, FEMA 
denied the claim, but the mitigation was eligible for 50% reimbursement under ADEM.  Staff received 
2 quotes to raise the exterior walls by 30”.  The job was awarded to J.R. Fox Company in the amount of 
$16,454.  The work is now 100% complete. 
 
Faulkner Lake Storm Drain Valve 
On the southwest corner of the property lies a storage yard for “exposed” materials.  To protect our No-
Exposure storm water permit, the yard has a 12” storm drain into the headworks of the treatment plant.  
During the flood, the drain became submerged, increasing the flow into the plant until staff discovered 
the problem and made temporary measures.  A project to install a valve to close off the line during 
flooding was created, and cost was covered in the amount of 50% by ADEM.  Staff received 2 quotes, 
and the job was awarded to J.R. Fox Company in the amount of $5,595.  This project is 100% complete. 
 
White Oak Electrical Relocation Project 

In similar fashion to the Parshall Flume Project, two of the White Oak Treatment Plant electrical services 
were compromised during the flood but were not covered under FEMA since staff protected the 
equipment from damages.  Fortunately, this project was also eligible for the 50% ADEM reimbursement, 
and staff advertised for bids.  Low bidder was Bentco, Inc in the amount of $72,000.  This is a 2-part 
project. The first of which includes reinstalling the electrical service at the influent pump station  up 
approximately 4 feet.  This portion is 100% complete.  The 2nd part is furnishing a new up to code service 
for the Old Lagoons/Chlorine Building at a new elevation near the top of the lagoon levee.  Equipment 
for this 2nd portion is on order with a ship date of May 22nd.  At this time, this entire project is anticipated 
to be completed by the middle of June. 

 
 
 
 
 

 

7400 BAUCUM PIKE PHONE  (501) 945-7186 
P.O. BOX 17898 FAX  (501) 945-3716 
NORTH LITTLE ROCK, AR 72117-0898 



   

                                     NORTH LITTLE ROCK WASTEWATER UTILITY  

7400 BAUCUM PIKE  PHONE  (501) 945-7186 
P.O. BOX 17898  FAX  (501) 945-2367 
NORTH LITTLE ROCK, AR 72117-0898 
 

  
 

Memorandum 

TO:   Marc Wilkins 

FROM:  Marybeth Eggleston 

DATE:    05/07/20  

RE:   Environmental Compliance & Safety Status Report 
 

 

The Land Application Annual Report was submitted to ADEQ on 4/20/20.  Chris Lumpkin, 
Technical Specialist and I are still working on the permit renewal for the White Oak Treatment 
Plant.  
 
Sampling for the 2nd quarter water, sludge, and biomonitoring have been completed.  
 
 



 

 
 
 
 

 
 

  

 

 

 
AGENDA FOR 

NORTH LITTLE ROCK WASTEWATER TREATMENT COMMITTEE 
MEETING 

 

RE: Committee Meeting 

PLACE: Faulkner Lake Treatment Plant 

 7400 Baucum Pike, North Little Rock, Arkansas 72117 

DATE: May 12, 2020 

TIME: 12:15 PM 

 
(1) ROLL CALL OF THE COMMITTEE MEMBERS 

 
(2) APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE MARCH 10, 2020 MEETING 

 
(3) CASH DISBURSEMENTS FOR MARCH & APRIL 2020 

 
(4) FINANCIAL REPORT FOR MARCH & APRIL 2020 

 
(5)     2019 AUDIT REPORT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

  
 

 
 

        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    #1 
 
   

 
 
 
 
 

(1) 
 
 
 

ROLL CALL of the COMMITTEE MEMBERS 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

 
 
 
 

 
 

(2) 
 
 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
 
 

ACTION REQUESTED: 
 

Approval of the Minutes of the March 10, 2020 Committee Meeting 
 
 

 

  

  



NORTH LITTLE ROCK
WASTEWATER TREATMENT COMMITTEE

MrNurrs oF A MEETTNG HELD Tunsoav, MAncH L0,2020

A meeting of the North Little Rock Wastewater Treatment Committee was
held on Tuesday, March 10, 2020 at the administrative offices located at the
Faulkner Lake Treatment Plant.

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Matthews at approximately
12:15 p.m. The roll was called and a quorum was present. Those in attendance at
the meeting were Mr. K.W. Matthews, Mr. Ed Nelson, Ms. Karen Bryant and Mr.
Gabe Stephens, and in addition, Mr. Jack Stowe, representative from the City of
Maumelle and Scott Grummer, Chief of Staff for the Mayor of Maumelle. AIso in
attendance were Mr. Marc Wilkins, Director, Mr. Michael Clayton, Assistant
Director, Ms. Gina Briley, Mr. Charles Frost, Mr. Ronnie Thompson, Mr. Lyle
Leubner, Ms. Marybeth Eggleston, Mr. Tad Bohannon and Mr. Jeff Mascagni with
Central Arkansas Water, Mr. Scott Hilburn with Hilburn, Calhoon, Harper,
Pruniski & Calhoun, Ltd. and Dawn Harmon.

First, the Committee reviewed the minutes of its February 11, 2020 meeting.
There being no questions or comments, a motion was made by Mr. Nelson, seconded
by Ms. Bryant, to approve the minutes of its February II, 2020 meeting. The
motion carried unanimously.

Mr. Jeff Mascagni, then addressed the Committee with regard to the CAW
Billing Services Agreement. He went through a power point presentation which
highlighted their 20L7 Cost of Service Study. The purpose of this study was to
update biling fees to more closely align with operating cost of providing service.
For the Utility's level of service, level three (3), the fee per bill was $1.6882. In
2001, the proposed billing fee was $1.84. Currently, the fee charged is $0.98. The
new rate proposed for 2020 is $1.01, which is a three percent (3%) increase. The
Committee also addressed with the CAW representatives the items noted in the
Hilburn Law Firm's letter to the Utility dated February 27, 2020. Chairman
Matthews asked Mr. Scott Hilburn to get with CAW to discuss the other changes in
the contract. Additionally, CAW confirmed that NLRW and LRWR were the only
two hold outs on approving the new billing agreement. After further discussion,
CAW stated they would agree to the following changes to the billing agreement:

6. Service Charee. Beginning on April I, 2OI9, CAW shall receive $0.983
per bill that CAW transmits or delivers to each customer on behalf of the Utility
(Service Charge). Service Charge shall be annually adjusted on April L, 2020,202I,



2022,2023 an.d 2024 by three percent (3%). On April l, 2025, 2026,2027, 2028 and
2029, the service charge shall be adjusted by three percent (3%) or if the previous
calendar year's change in the Consumer Price Index - AII Urban Consumers (case

year 1982 -84 = 100) as published by the Bureau of Labor Statistics, United States
Department of Labor exceeds 3%o, t}ne parties shall negotiate in good faith to
determine the service charge adjustment for that year. Major upgrades,
expenditures or changes to CAW's billing system may require renegotiation of the
Service Charge.

16. Term. The initial term of Agreement shall begin on January I, 2020,
for a period of ten (10) years. Thereafter, Agreement shall automatically renew for
additional one (1) year periods (each a "Renewal Term") thereafter.

After further discussion, A motion was then made by Mr. Nelson, seconded by Ms
Bryant, to approve the revised language to the BiIIing Agreement which is:

6. Service Charge. Beginning on April L,2019, CAW shall receive $0.983
per bill that CAW transmits or delivers to each customer on behalf of the Utility
(Service Charge). Service Charge shall be annually adjusted on April I,2020,202I,
2022,2023 and 2024 by three percent (3%). On April I, 2025, 2026, 2027,2028 and
2029, the service charge shall be adjusted by three percent (3%) or if the previous
calendar year's change in the Consumer Price Index - AII Urban Consumers (case

year 1982-84 = 100) as published by the Bureau of Labor Statistics, United States
Department of Labor exceeds 3yo, the parties shall negotiate in good faith to
determine the service charge adjustment for that year. Major upgrades,
expenditures or changes to CAW's billing system may require renegotiation of the
Service Charge.

16. Term. The initial term of Agreement shall begin on January I, 2020,
for a period of ten (10) years. Thereafter, Agreement shall automatically renew for
additional one (1) year periods (each a "Renewal Term") thereafter.

The motion carried unanimously

Next, the Committee reviewed the cash disbursements for the month of
February 2O2O. Mr. Nelson asked a question regarding check number 48934 to the
Arkansas Municipal League in the sum of $95,601.88. Mr. Wilkins and Ms. Briley
confirmed the payment covered a twelve (12) month period and this policy carried
the $5,000.00 deductible. After a brief discussion, a motion was made by Mr.
Nelson, seconded by Mr. Stephens, to approve the cash disbursements for February
2020 reflecting total cash disbursements of $2,013,295.2I and fund transfers
between accounts of $1,493,416.67. The motion carried unanimously.



The Committee then reviewed the Financial Statement for February 2O20.

Mr. Nelson asked why the industrial rate fees were down by approximately
$60,000.0. Mr. Wilkins and Ms. Briley advised Mr. Nelson and the Committee that
Kimberly Clark and the VA have decreased flows. Upon motion made by Mr.
Nelson, seconded by Mr. Stephens, the Committee unanimously approved the
Financial Statement for February 2020.

Mr. Wilkins then advised the Committee that the erosion of a creek bank has
exposed a section of an existing lO-inch concrete gravity sewer line creating the
need for emergency corrective actions. The section exposed is approximately 35 - 40
feet in length and is located about a quarter mile upstream from the bridge on
Avondale Road (locally known as Snake HilD. The staff took immediate action to
try to safe up the pipeline over the weekend of February 20 through March 1 in
response to predictions of a significant rainfall event. Diamond Construction, Inc.,
has been called in to construct a concrete protective barrier. The estimated cost of
the repair is $32,000 - $42,000.00 which will be funded through general revenues.
The 2020 budget includes $1,000,000.00 for emergency repairs. A motion was then
made by Mr. Stephens, seconded by Ms. Bryant, to authorize the use of Diamond
Construction Co., Inc. for the emergency corrective actions for the Lakewood Valley
Drive - Bank Stabilization 2020 project. The motion carried unanimously.

The Committee then discussed the Upper Riverside Interceptors CIPP 2020
Rehabilitation Project (FEMA Projects 111006 and 111015). Mr. Wilkins informed
them that the staff prepared bid documents for the cured-in-place rehabilitation of
interceptor sewer lines in response to the damages incurred from the 2019 flood.
The project includes debris removal or heavy cleaning and internal lining of
approximately 6,116 linear feet of 30-inch and 36-inch reinforced concrete pipe
interceptor sewer lines using CIPP. By-pass pumping, heavy cleaning and detailed
CCTV of the interceptors will be part of the CIPP activities. The estimated cost for
this project is $3,0L6,I23 with 75% to be reimbursed from FEMA and 25% from
NLRW reserves based on actual cost. The Utility will pay the costs associated with
this project up front and FEMA will then reimburse the 75%. A motion was then
made by Ms. Bryant, seconded by Mr. Nelson, to authorize tlne staff to advertise for
bids for the Upper Riverside Interceptors CIPP 2020 Rehabilitation Project. The
motion carried unanimously.

The Committee was then advised that the bids for the 2019 Auxiliary
Generators and Transfer Switches were opened Thursday, March 5, 2020 at 10:00
a.m. The project consists of installing four (4) generators and automatic transfer
switches at the following existing pump stations:



Mid-State
Rixie RR
Maumelle High School
Osage Hills

30 kw
30 kw
60 kw
45 kw

Lock-Wood Electric, Inc. of Conway, Arkansas submitted the low bid in the amount
of g135,850.00. The 2020 budget includes $160,000.00 for this project. A motion
was then mad.e by Ms. Bryant, seconded by Mr. Stephens, to authorize the staff to
enter into a contract with Lock-Wood Electric, Inc. of Conway, Arkansas for the
20Lg Auxiliary Generators and Transfer Switches project in the amount of

$135,850.00. The motion carried unanimously.

The Committee then discussed the White Oak All-Weather Access Road.

Bids for this project were opened on Thursday, March 5, 2020 at 10:30 a.m. The

project consists of constructing an all weather access road to the White Oak WTP

one foot above the Base Floodplan Elevation. Burkhalter Technologies, Inc. of
North Little Rock, Arkansas submitted the low bid in the amount of $151,406.00.
This project is not included in the 2020 budget. However, it is included in the State
Hazard Mitigation Grant 2020 and will be eligible for 50%o funding. The remaining
50% will come from general revenues. It was also noted that Mr. Clayton is

working with Gene Pfeifer to secure the necessary easement for the access road. A
motion was then made by Ms. Bryant, seconded by Mr. Stephens, to authortze the
staff to enter into a contract with Burkhalter Technologies, Inc. of North Little
Rock, Arkansas for the White Oak WTP All-Weather Access Road project in the

amount of $151,406.00. The motion carried unanimously.

Mr. Wilkins then advised the Committee that payment in the sum of

$358,533.62 was received from the insurance company during the month of
February for the fire bay loss. To date, the Utility has been reimbursed the sum of

$1,608,533.00 with a claim balance of $686,856.15 still outstanding.

Mr. Wilkins then informed the Committee that an email communication was

received. from Larry Martin, a resident, who claimed the Utility employees put out
rat poison that killed his pet. After an investigation, Mr. Wilkins stated that the
Utility did not do this and was further not responsible for Mr. Martin's pet.

Upon motion made by Mr. Nelson, seconded by Mr. Stephens, the Committee
unanimously excused the absence of Mr. Smith from the meeting.

There being no further action to come before the Committee, a motion was

made by Mr. Nelson to adjourn the meeting. The motion carried unanimously, and

the meeting was adjourned at approximately 1:20 p.m.



APPROVED AS TO FORM:

K. W. MATTHEWS, CHAIRMAN

RESPE CTFULLY SUBMITTED,

SYLVESTER SMITH,
VI CE - CHAIRMAN/SE CRETARY



 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

(3) 
 
 
 
 
 

CASH DISBURSEMENTS FOR MARCH & APRIL 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
 
 

Approval of the Cash Disbursements for March 2020 showing total  

Cash Disbursements of $2,729,539.21 and  

Fund Transfers between accounts of $2,012,766.67. 
 

Approval of the Cash Disbursements for April 2020 showing total  

Cash Disbursements of $2,180,743.60 and  

Fund Transfers between accounts of $1,687,266.67. 
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR MARCH & APRIL 2020 
 
 

ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
 

Approve the Financial Statements for March 2020. 
 

Approve the Financial Statements for April 2020. 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





































 

 

  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(5) 
 
 

2019 AUDIT REPORT 

 
Lindsey Baker from EGP, PLLC will present the 2019 audit report. 

 
 
 

ACTION REQUESTED: 
 

Accept the audit report and authorize distribution. 
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1

INTRODUCTION

The North Little Rock Waste Water Utility, hereafter referred to as the “Utility” is pleased to 
present its financial report for the years ending December 31, 2019 and 2018 developed in 
compliance with Governmental Accounting Standards. 

Mission
The mission of the Utility is to provide safe, low cost, high quality sewer service to the citizens of 
North Little Rock, Arkansas and other areas as directed.  This service in general includes the 
collection, treatment and disposal of the treated water into the Arkansas River in an 
environmentally sound matter.

Summary of Organization
The Utility was established by the North Little Rock City Council in 1962.  The City Council 
appointed a five member commission to oversee its operations.  Each commissioner is appointed 
for a five year period, with any reappointment approved by the City Council.  The commission 
meets in open public session on the second Tuesday of each month.  The Utility’s day to day 
operations are managed by a professional Director with assistance from the senior management.  
The Utility has no taxing power.  Operational and maintenance costs are funded from customer 
fees and charges.  At the end of 2019, the utility provided service to approximately 40,000
customers. The acquisition and construction of capital assets are funded by customer revenues, 
contributions from developers and sewer improvement districts and from construction loans.  The 
Utility maintains and operates four treatment plants, 74 pump stations and hundreds of miles of 
sewer lines.  As of December 31, 2019, the Utility had 93 full time employees dedicated to 
providing sewer service to the customer base.  

Responsibility and Controls
The Utility has prepared and is responsible for the financial statements and related information 
included in this report.  A system of internal accounting controls is maintained to provide 
reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded and that the books reflect only authorized 
transactions.  The internal accounting controls are evaluated on an ongoing basis by the Finance 
Administrator.  Independent external auditors also consider certain elements of the internal control 
system in order to determine their auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the financial statements.

Management believes that its policies and procedures provide guidance and reasonable assurance 
that the Utility’s operations are conducted according to management’s intentions and to a high 
standard of business ethics.  In management’s opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position, results of operations and cash flows in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Audit Assurance
The unqualified opinion of our independent auditors, EGP, PLLC, is included in this report.  
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Independent Auditor's Report

North Little Rock Waste Water Treatment Committee
North Little Rock Waste Water Utility

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of North Little Rock Waste Water Utility (a 
component unit of the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas), which comprise the statements of net 
position as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the related statements of revenues, expenses and 
changes in net position and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the North Little Rock Waste Water Utility, as of December 31, 2019 and P
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y 
D
ra

ft



2018, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the years then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter
As discussed in Note1, the financial statements present only the  North Little Rock Waste Water Utility
and do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the City of North Little Rock, 
Arkansas, as of  December 31, 2019 and 2018, the changes in its financial position, or, where applicable, 
its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.  Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the required 
supplementary information as listed in the table of contents on pages 5 through 10 and 32 through 35 be 
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to 
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information 
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the North Little Rock Waste Water Utility’s financial statements as a whole. The introductory 
section, schedule of operating expenses and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards as required by
the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (“CFR”) Part 200 Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards on pages 1, 
36 and 41, respectively, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of 
the financial statements. 

The schedule of operating expenses and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the 
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.  Such information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America.  In our opinion, the schedule of operating expenses and the schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial
statements as a whole.  

The introductory section has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 

3
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 31, 
2020 on our consideration of North Little Rock Waste Water Utility’s internal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering North Little Rock Waste 
Water Utility, internal control over financial reporting.

March 31, 2020        Certified Public Accountants & Consultants
North Little Rock, Arkansas
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This section presents management’s analysis of the Utility’s financial condition and activities for 
the year.  This information should be read in conjunction with the financial statements.

Financial Highlights

Our current rate ordinance was adopted on October 26, 2015 and it includes rate adjustments
effective on January 1st of the years 2016 through 2020.  The rate of $17.52 for a minimum usage 
of 400 cubic feet and $5.27 per 100 cubic feet of usage after 400 was effective for the January, 
2019 usage which was billed in February.  The rate which was in effect for the January, 2019 billing 
for the December, 2018 usage was $4.88 per 100 cubic feet with a minimum amount of $17.01 for 
400 cubic feet.  There is a minimum charge of four 100 cubic feet for all customers.

The Utility was able to increase its cash and certificates of deposit balance by around $3,000,000 
during 2019.  The Utility was able to invest excess funds in two new certificates of deposit and add 
funds to two current certificates of deposit during the year.

The Statement of Net Position as of 12/31/19, includes an insurance receivable.  In late October of 
2018, there was a fire at the Utility’s Faulkner Lake treatment plant location.  This fire destroyed 
five high value pieces of equipment, a large metal building, building contents and inventory items.  
There was also extensive smoke damage to one office building.  As of the end of 2019, the Utility 
had received $1,250,000 from its insurance company and the receivable is the additional amount 
that will be paid by the insurance company for the replacement value of the destroyed property as 
well as expenses related to clean up.

In May, the Utility suffered flood damage at two of its treatment plants.  This flood was declared a 
major disaster by the federal government on June 8, 2019.  The Utility has submitted paperwork to 
receive up to 75% reimbursement for the damages sustained.  The FEMA receivable shown in the 
Statement of Net Position, is the amount the Utility received after year end but before the 2019 
audit was completed.  The Utility is hopeful to receive further reimbursement during 2020.  

The Utility increased its property value less depreciation by around $4,900,000 during 2019.  This 
increase was mainly due to construction in progress projects.  

The Arkansas Natural Resources Commission approved loan funds from the Arkansas Clean Water 
State Revolving Loan Fund in the amount of $30,000,000 on October 15, 2016.  The interest rate 
is 1.25 percent with an annual servicing fee of 1.00 percent.  The Utility will pay interest only on 
the loan funds received until April, 2021 at which time principal payments commence.  At the end 
of December, 2019, the Utility had been disbursed the total amount of $16,163,031 for this bond 
issue.
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Overview of Annual Financial Report            
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) serves as an introduction to, and should be read 
in conjunction with, the basic financial statements and supplementary information.  The MD&A 
represents management’s examination and analysis of the Utility’s financial condition and 
performance.

The financial statements report information about the Utility using full accrual accounting methods 
as utilized by similar business activities in the private sector.  The financial statements include a 
statement of net position; statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position; statement 
of cash flows; notes to the financial statements and other supporting schedules.

The statement of net position presents the financial position of the Utility on a full accrual historical 
cost basis.  This statement presents information on all of the assets and liabilities with the difference 
reported as net position.  Over time, increases and decreases in net assets are one indicator of 
whether the financial position is improving or deteriorating.

While the statement of net position provides information about the nature and amount of resources 
and obligations at year-end, the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position
presents the results of the business activities over the course of the fiscal year and information as 
to how the net position changed during the year.  All changes in net position are reported as soon 
as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the cash flows.

The statement of cash flows presents changes in cash and cash equivalents, resulting from 
operational, financing and investing activities.  This statement presents cash receipt and 
disbursement information only.

The notes to the financial statements and supplementary information are provided to disclose 
information that is essential to a full understanding of the material data provided in the statements.

The financial statements were prepared by the Utility’s staff from its detailed transactions for the 
years ending December 31, 2019 and 2018.  The financial statements were audited and adjusted, if 
material, during the independent external audit process.

Financial Analysis
The comparative financial statements provide information about the financial activities of the North 
Little Rock Waste Water Utility.  The following information is an analysis of the comparison 
between the two years presented in the financial statements.  The amounts for the year ending 
December 31, 2017 are also shown for reference purposes.
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Statement of Net Position:
This statement indicates that the Utility had an adequate amount of liquid assets as of the end of 
the year and a reasonable level of unrestricted net position.  The increase in current assets between 
2019 and 2018 is the result of a higher certificate of deposit and cash balance.  The increase in the 
property value is mainly due to the completion of projects during the year.  The other non-current 
assets include the deferred outflow related to pension account, which decreased from 2018 to 2019.
The decrease in current liabilities is due to a lower balance in accounts payable at the end of 2019.  
The other non-current liability total amount for 2019 includes an amount of $2,547,471 for the 
reserve for bio-solid removal.  This reserve account was set up to accrue a liability for the cost of 
removing sludge from the lagoons at all of the treatment plants.  The current ratio is an indication 
of short-term liability and is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities.  A resulting 
number greater than one indicates current assets in excess of current needs which can be applied to 
future periods.  The current ratio as of December 31, 2019 was 4.17 and the ratio for 2018 and 2017 
was 2.81 and 2.75, respectively.  Another ratio which is shown on this statement is the debt 
utilization ratio which indicates what percentage the total debt is to total assets.  This ratio is 
calculated by dividing total notes payable by total assets and was 32% for the year ended December 
31, 2019.  The debt utilization ratio for 2018 and 2017 was 31% and 32%, respectively.

2019 2018 2017

Current Assets 17,001,304$    15,274,710$    10,658,390$    

Net Property & Equipment 122,603,668$  117,665,611$  114,351,953$  

Other Non-Current Assets 4,797,796$      4,611,331$      3,028,945$      

Current Liabilities 4,079,669$      5,438,903$      3,911,339$      

Bonds Payable 43,724,708$    40,514,451$    38,552,096$    

Other Non-Current Liabilities 5,302,207$      6,116,099$      6,740,914$      

Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt 76,712,415$    75,043,661$    73,371,696$    

Restricted Net Position 3,027,798$      1,869,461$      1,323,262$      

Unrestricted Net Position 11,555,971$    8,569,077$      4,139,981$      

Analysis of Statement of Net Position
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8

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position:
For the year ending December 31, 2019, the Utility had an operating income of $5,949,018 with an 
overall increase in net position of $5,813,985 after the non-operating income and expenses were 
accounted for.

2109 2018 2017

Operating Revenue 22,979,810$ 22,091,555$ 20,619,957$ 

Operating Expenses 17,030,792$ 15,747,436$ 16,562,127$ 

Operating Income 5,949,018$   6,344,119$   4,057,830$   

Non-Operating Revenue 965,831$      1,273,454$   206,258$      

Non-Operating Expenses 1,100,864$   970,313$      951,001$      

Increase in Net Position 5,813,985$   6,647,260$   3,313,087$   

Analysis of Statement of Revenues, Expenses and

Changes in Net Position

Of the total operating revenue for 2019, 96% comes from the rates that the customer base pays for 
their sewer service.  

The operating revenue besides that amount directly from the customer base includes late fees 
collected on past due billings, tie-on and permit fees, a treatment fee accessed to another city per a 
court order agreement and plan review charges.  The operating revenue increase between 2019 and 
2018 is due to the rate change which was effective with the February 2019 billings.  There was also 
a rate increase between 2018 and 2017.

The total operating expense is comprised of labor, deprecation and other.  The labor cost includes 
benefits (insurance, training, matching FICA, and pension) as well as salary.  The other operating 
expenses include supplies, utilities, routine repair and maintenance, outside services and any other 
non-labor or depreciation expense.  The increase in operating expenses between 2019 and 2018 is 
mainly due to the recording of emergency repairs due to a flood event.

The non-operating revenue for 2019 includes around $747,000 for insurance proceeds received 
during the year for the fire damage in 2018 and funds received from FEMA for the flood damage 
in 2019.  In 2018, there was a gain on disposal of assets which related to the fire.  

The non-operating expense includes interest expense on all loans and loss on disposal of some 
assets.P
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Capital Asset Information:
As of December 31, 2019, the Utility had a property value after accumulated depreciation of 
$122,603,668.  This amount includes construction in progress as well as fixed assets.  The major 
increase in property value before depreciation was the result of various construction in progress 
projects both completed and in progress.  The construction in progress jobs included various 
projects for lining and pipe bursting of sewer lines, the addition and remodeling of the collections 
systems and engineering building and a pump station generator project.  The capital asset additions 
were funded with both bond proceeds and reserves.  An amount of $621,765 in property value was
disposed of during the year.  Some items were sold and some were removed due to replacement.

Debt Information:
The following schedule shows the debt activity for the year.

The payments recorded for the revolving loan funds were the scheduled six-month payments.  The 
Series 2001 loan will be paid off in April, 2024.  The Series 2008 loan will be paid off in October, 
2031.  The Series 2012 loan will be paid off in October, 2035.  The Series 2016 loan was issued in 
October of 2015 for an amount of $30,000,000.  Interest only payments will be made until April, 
2021 at which time principal payments will commence until October, 2040.

Budget to Actual Comparison:
The budget is prepared by the Utility’s Finance Manager and is based on the previous year’s dollar 
amounts.  The previous years’ amounts are adjusted to reflect the projected activity for the current 
year.  As with any budget, there were differences with the actual amounts recorded for the year.

The total operating revenue was less than the amount budgeted.  The actual usage for the customers 
as a whole was lower than what was budgeted, thus the customer revenue was lower than expected.  
This decrease was offset some by an increase in late fee income.

The budgeted total operating expense was higher than actual.  The budget included the amount of 
$1,000,000 for emergency repairs and only a little over half of that amount was used.  The budget 
also included some new labor positions which were not filled and some repair and maintenance of 
equipment which did not have to be completed.  

The actual non-operating revenue amount is higher than the amount budgeted due to a higher 
interest rate received on the certificates of deposit

The actual non-operating expenses were lower than the amount budgeted due to a lower amount of 
draws received from the 2016 loan than expected.    

1/1/2019 DRAWS 12/31/2019

DESCRIPTION BALANCE RECEIVED PAYMENTS BALANCE

SERIES 2001 3,419,112.55$  577,426.72$   2,841,685.83$  

SERIES 2008 9,941,469.60$  645,757.81$   9,295,711.79$  

SERIES 2012 18,475,139.72$ 884,315.45$   17,590,824.27$

SERIES 2016 10,786,227.00$ 5,376,804.00$ -$ 16,163,031.00$

42,621,948.87$ 5,376,804.00$ 2,107,499.98$ 45,891,252.89$

SCHEDULE OF BONDS PAYABLE

DECEMBER 31, 2019
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Analysis of Planned Activity for 2020:
There are a number of lining, pipe bursting and interceptor projects planned for various locations 
within the service area.  These projects will increase the life of various sized sewer lines and will 
be funded through the Series 2016 loan and general revenue.  There will also be a contract for 
another Sewer System Evaluation Survey which will be paid out of general revenue.  Also, 
engineering will continue for the Maumelle to White Oak diversion and will also be paid out of 
general revenue.  The Utility’s plan is to divert the flow from the Maumelle service area to the 
White Oak Treatment Plant and decommission the current Maumelle Treatment Plant.  Also, the 
renovation and addition to the collection systems and engineering building will be completed, 
which is also funded with general revenues.    

Contacting the Management:
The financial report is designed to provide our customers, citizens and creditors with a general 
overview of the Utility’s finances and to show the accountability for the money it receives.  If you 
have any questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact our 
administration office.
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2019 2018

Current Assets

Cash 3,477,870$         3,100,194           

Certificates of deposit 9,554,584 8,034,114

Accrued interest receivable 95,791 52,418

Accounts receivable  (net of allowance of $10,000) 2,641,624 2,888,748           

FEMA grant receivable 97,761 -

Insurance receivable 1,045,390 1,146,219           

Inventory 27,069 24,845

Prepaid expenses 61,215 28,172

Total Current Assets 17,001,304         15,274,710         

Noncurrent Assets

Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 2,028,478 1,374,813

Certificates of deposit 504,497              -

Other assets 494,823              494,648              

Property, plant and equipment, net 122,603,668       117,665,611       

Notes receivable, net of current portion 176,055              176,055              

Total Noncurrent Assets 125,807,521       119,711,127       

Total Assets 142,808,825       134,985,837       

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Deferred outflows related to pensions 1,593,943           2,565,815           

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 1,593,943           2,565,815           

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 144,402,768$     137,551,652       

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

North Little Rock Waste Water Utility

Statement of Net Position

December 31, 2019 and 2018

(See independent auditor's report.)

Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources

P
re

lim
in
ar

y 
D
ra

ft



 11

2019 2018

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable 648,442$            2,197,207           

Other current liabilities 534,324 491,650

Accrued absences 730,358 642,547

Current portion of long-term debt 2,166,545           2,107,499

Total Current Liabilities 4,079,669           5,438,903           

Noncurrent Liabilities

Reserve for bio-solids disposal 2,547,471           2,330,871

Pension liability 1,753,904 2,685,571

OPEB obligation 299,950              285,680              

Bonds payable, net of current portion 43,724,708 40,514,451

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 48,326,033         45,816,573         

Total Liabilities 52,405,702         51,255,476         

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Deferred inflows related to pensions 700,882 813,977              

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 700,882              813,977              

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources 53,106,584         52,069,453         

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets 76,712,415         75,043,661         

Restricted 3,027,798           1,869,461           

Unrestricted 11,555,971         8,569,077           

Total Net Position 91,296,184         85,482,199         

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of

Resources and Net Position 144,402,768$     137,551,652       

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position
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2019 2018

Operating Revenues

Service charges 20,065,939$       18,986,722         

Service charges - industry 1,930,986 2,032,760

Service charges - violations 482,928 590,642

Users' forfeited discounts 322,271 305,927

Permits and inspections 40,770 51,395

Other operating income 136,916 124,109

Total Operating Revenues 22,979,810         22,091,555         

Operating Expenses

Cost of sales 9,776,400 8,883,186

Operating expenses 7,254,392 6,864,250

Total Operating Expenses 17,030,792         15,747,436         

Operating Income 5,949,018           6,344,119           

Non-Operating Income

Interest income 216,482 104,907              

Insurance proceeds 649,171 -

Grant revenue 97,761 -

Gain on disposal of assets - 1,122,903

Other non-operating income 2,417 45,644

Total Non-Operating Income 965,831              1,273,454           

Non-Operating Expenses

Interest expense 1,060,962 970,313

Loss on disposal of assets 39,902 -

Total Non-Operating Expenses 1,100,864           970,313              

Increase in Net Position 5,813,985           6,647,260           

Net position - beginning of period 85,482,199 78,834,939

Net Position - End of Period 91,296,184$       85,482,199         

North Little Rock Waste Water Utility

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

For the Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

(See independent auditor's report)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2019 2018

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:   

Cash received from:

Customers 22,992,257$  21,923,406    

Other operating income 136,916         124,109         

Cash payments for:

Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services (8,342,559)    (7,500,801)    

Cash paid to or on behalf of employees for services (5,440,291)    (3,049,201)    

Net Cash Provided (Required) by Operating Activities 9,346,323      11,497,513    

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities:

Repayment of long-term debt and bonds payable (2,107,501)    (2,428,160)    

Proceeds from draws on bond 5,376,804      4,069,853      

Acquisition and construction of capital assets (9,577,377)    (8,097,953)    

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 55,734           505,885         

Insurance proceeds from fire damage 750,000         -

Interest paid     (1,060,962)    (970,313)       

Net Cash Provided (Required) by Capital 

and Related Financing Activities         (6,563,302)    (6,920,688)    

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:

Proceeds from maturity of certificates of deposit (10,059,081)  (8,034,114)    

Investment in certificates of deposit 8,034,114      4,743,520      

Interest and other income received 273,287         113,067         

Net Cash Provided (Required) by Investing Activities (1,751,680)    (3,177,527)    

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,031,341      1,399,298      

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 4,475,007      3,075,709      

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 5,506,348$    4,475,007      

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents 3,477,870$    3,100,194      

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 2,028,478      1,374,813      

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 5,506,348$    4,475,007      

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

For the Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

(See independent auditor's report.)

Statement of Cash Flows
North Little Rock Waste Water Utility
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2019 2018

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided by 

Operating Activities:

Operating income 5,949,018$    6,344,119      

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to cash provided

by operating activities:

Depreciation 4,543,684      4,255,094      

(Increase) decrease in assets:

Accounts receivable 247,124         (44,040)         

Inventory (2,224)           13,671           

Grant receivable (97,761)         -

Other assets (33,218)         120,940         

Deferred outflows 971,872         (415,682)       

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:

Accounts payable (1,548,765)    1,831,918      

Accrued absences 87,811           (3,289)           

Other liabilities (658,123)       (475,917)       

Deferred inflows (113,095)       (129,301)       

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 9,346,323$    11,497,513    

Supplemental Disclosure of Noncash Transactions Investing   

and Financing Activities:

Insurance proceeds receivable from fire damage of property, 

plant and equipment -$              1,146,219
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North Little Rock Waste Water Utility

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2019 and 2018

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Operation
The North Little Rock Waste Water Utility (the “Utility”) (a component unit of the City of North Little Rock)
is financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises, where the intent of the governing
body is that the costs of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or
recovered primarily through user charges. The financial statements present only the North Little Rock Waste
Water Utility and do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the City of North Little
Rock, Arkansas, as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the changes in its financial position, or, where applicable,
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Basis of Accounting
The Utility follows Government Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) Statement No. 62, Codification of
Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA
Pronouncements, which incorporates Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) pronouncements and
Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) opinions issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those
pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements, in which case, GASB prevails.

The Utility uses the economic resources measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are
recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred regardless of the related cash flows. The
Utility distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.  Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. Operating expenses for the proprietary funds include the cost
of personnel, supplies, and depreciation on capital assets.  All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Use of Estimates
Preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires the use of management’s estimates.  Those estimates and assumptions affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting period.
Actual results may differ from estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Utility considers certificates of deposits and all highly liquid
cash investments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Certificates of Deposit
Certificates of deposit with original maturities of greater than three months.  Certificates of deposit are
recorded at amortized cost which approximates fair value.

Accounts Receivable
Sales of sewer services are made on open account to customers located in North Little Rock, Arkansas and
surrounding areas.   The Utility utilizes the allowance method of accounting for uncollectible accounts
receivable. The Utility reviews its customer accounts on a periodic basis and records a reserve for specific
amounts that management determines may not be collected.  In addition, the Utility has established a general
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North Little Rock Waste Water Utility

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2019 and 2018

reserve for potential uncollectible accounts based on historical bad debts.  Amounts are written off at the point 
when collection attempts have been exhausted, which is usually 120 days after the account is past due.  
Management uses significant judgment in estimating uncollectible amounts.  In estimating uncollectible 
amounts, management considers factors such as current overall economic conditions, industry-specific 
economic conditions, historical customer performance and anticipated customer performance. While 
management believes the Utility’s processes effectively address its exposure to doubtful accounts, changes in 
economic, industry or specific customer conditions may require adjustment to the allowance recorded by the 
Utility. Accounts receivable are net of an allowance for doubtful accounts of $10,000 at both December 31, 
2019 and 2018

Inventory
Inventory consists of materials and supplies valued at the lower of cost or market, using the first-in, first-out 
method.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost unless otherwise noted.  Depreciation is provided by the 
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets ranging from three to fifty years.  
Assets are constructed and acquired by four methods: utility work crews, independent contractors financed by 
utility funds, contributions to the utility by independently financed waste water improvement districts, and 
contributions to the utility by real estate developers in conjunction with a property development.  Assets 
acquired from improvement districts and real estate developers result in donated capital and have been so 
classified.  Donated fixed assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date donated.  Interest 
costs are capitalized when incurred on debt where proceeds were used to finance the construction of assets.
The Utility capitalizes all purchases over $1,000 that have at least a three year useful life. Costs of repairs and 
maintenance that do not improve or extend the assets lives are charged to expense as incurred.

Long-Lived Assets
The Utility reviews long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangibles held and used by the Utility for 
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not 
be recoverable.  For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, no impairment has been identified.

Net Position
Net positon comprises the various net earnings from operating income, non-operating revenues and expenses, 
and capital contributions. Net position is classified in the following three components:

Net investment in capital assets
This component of net position consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the 
outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the 
acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. If there are significant unspent related debt proceeds 
at year-end, the portion of the debt attributable to the unspent proceeds is not included in the calculation of net 
investment in capital assets. Rather, that portion of the debt is included in the same net position component as 
the unspent proceeds.

Restricted for debt service
This component of net position consists of constraints imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), 
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law through 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. When an expense is incurred for purposes for which there are 
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both restricted and unrestricted net position available, it is the Utility’s policy to apply those expenses to 
restricted net position to the extent such are available and then to unrestricted net position.

Unrestricted
This component of net positon consists of net assets that do not meet the definition of “net investment in 
capital assets” or “restricted.”

Accrued Absences
Each employee may accumulate a maximum of thirty days of vacation and sixty days of sick leave.  The Utility 
has accrued a liability for vacation and sick leave pay, which has been earned but not taken by employees.

Reserve for Bio-Solids Disposal
The Utility provides annually for the estimated cost of bio-solids removal from the treatment plant lagoons, 
which occurs every five to fifteen years for each lagoon.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting
Budgeted revenues and expenses are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting.  The original budgets adopted by the Utility were not amended during the years 
ended December 31, 2019 and 2018.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
The statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources, 
which represents consumption of net position that applies to a future period and will not be recognized as an 
outflow of resources until then.  In addition, the statement net position will sometimes report a separate section 
for deferred inflows of resources, which represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period 
and will not be recognized as an inflow of resources until then.  The Utility utilizes deferred outflows and 
deferred inflows to account for changes regarding pension liabilities.  

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards
GASB Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings and Direct 
Placements, provides guidance on debt information that is to be disclosed in the notes to governmental 
financial statements. The statement clarifies which liabilities are to be included in the disclosures and requires 
additional information to be disclosed. In addition, the statement requires information about debt incurred 
through direct borrowings or direct placements to be disclosed separately from other debt. The standard 
became effective for the Utility in fiscal year 2019. GASB Statement No. 88 did not have a significant impact
on the Utility’s financial statements. 

Recently Issued Accounting Standards
GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, provides a new framework for accounting for leases under the principle that 
leases are financings. No longer will leases be classified between capital and operating. Lessees will recognize 
an intangible asset and a corresponding liability. The liability will be based on the payments expected to be 
paid over the lease term, which includes an evaluation of the likelihood of exercising renewal or termination 
options in the lease. Lessors will recognize a lease receivable and related deferred inflow of resources. Lessors 
will not derecognize the underlying asset. An exception to the general model is provided for short-term leases 
that cannot last more than 12 months. Contracts that contain lease and nonlease components will need to be 
separated so each component is accounted for accordingly. This standard becomes effective for the Utility in 
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fiscal year 2020. Management of the Utility has not yet determined the impact that adoption of this statement 
will have on the Utility’s financial statements or related disclosures.

GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction Period, 
established accounting requirements for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period. The 
statement requires such interest cost be recognized as an expense in the period in which the cost is incurred in 
financial statements prepared using the economic resources measurement focus. Currently, GASB Statement 
No. 62 requires some interest costs to be included in the historical cost of a capital asset reported in an 
enterprise fund or business-type activity. When effective, this statement will no longer require interest cost to 
be included in historical cost. This standard becomes effective for the Utility in fiscal year 2020. Management 
of the Utility has not yet determined the impact that adoption of this statement will have on the Utility’s 
financial statements or related disclosures.

2. Description of Funds

The Utility complies with all state and local laws and regulations as well as the provisions of certain contracts
requiring the use of separate funds. The required funds used by the Utility include the following:

Sewer Fund
The Sewer Fund was established for the purpose of depositing all revenues derived from the operation of the
system.  Revenues are for the payment of reasonable and necessary expenses of operation and maintenance of
the system, payment of principal, interest and trustee’s fees on bonds, reserve for contingencies, and providing
for a depreciation fund.

Operating and Maintenance Fund
The Operating and Maintenance Fund is used to pay the reasonable and necessary monthly expenses of
operation, and repair and maintenance of the Utility.  The fund is maintained by required monthly transfers
from the Sewer Fund.

Sewer Depreciation Fund
The Sewer Depreciation Fund is restricted to paying the costs of needed capital improvements or replacements;
provided, however, that monies in the Sewer Depreciation Fund may be used to the extent necessary to prevent
a default in the payment of the principal and interest on bonds as they become due. The fund is maintained by
required monthly transfers from the Sewer Fund.

Rehabilitation Fund
The Rehabilitation Fund was established in 2007 by city ordinance #7973 (as amended by city ordinance
#8083) to provide for system repairs and replacements from the proceeds of 2007 rate increases.  The
ordinance requires that a monthly transfer of $41,667 ($500,000 annually) be made from the Sewer Fund to
provide for repairs and replacements.

2001 Revolving Loan Fund
The 2001 Revolving Loan Fund was established in 2001 and is restricted to the recording of activity in
connection with the 2001 Revolving Loan Fund.P
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2008 Revolving Loan Fund
The 2008 Revolving Loan Fund was established in 2008 and is restricted to the recording of activity in 
connection with the 2008 Revolving Loan Fund.

2012 Revolving Loan Fund
The 2012 Revolving Loan Fund was established in 2012 and is restricted to the recording of activity in 
connection with the 2012 Revolving Loan Fund.

2016 Revolving Loan Fund
The 2016 Revolving Loan Fund was established in 2016 and is restricted to the recording of activity in 
connection with the 2016 Revolving Loan Fund.

3. Cash and Certificates of Deposit

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. In
accordance with its investment policy, the Utility manages its exposure to declines in fair values by limiting
investments to securities with a maturity of not more than five years from the date of purchase and by
attempting to match investment maturities with cash flow requirements.

Credit risk is the risk that the issuer of counterparty will not fulfill its obligations. To minimize exposure to
credit risk, the Utility’s investment policy specifies the types of securities in which the Utility may invest.
Generally, this is accomplished by investing in certificates of deposit with maturities of less than five years.

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, deposits may not be returned to the Utility.
At December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Utility’s deposits with two financial institutions were fully insured or
collateralized and totaled $15,717,901 and $12,888,810, respectively.

4. Restricted Funds

The Utility has certain debt services funds with the Arkansas Development Finance Authority (“ADFA”),
which are restricted to various uses.  The Utility is required to deposit monthly with the ADFA, to be held in
trust, an amount equal to 1/6 of the interest to become due on the next ensuing interest payment plus 1/6 of the
next installment of principal next due on the Bonds.  The required deposits shall be reduced by any amount in
the Debt Service Fund available for meeting the purpose for which a deposit is required to be made.  The total
deposits, held in trust as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, were $494,823 and $494,648, respectively.

In addition, certain funds included in cash and cash equivalents and certificates of deposit are restricted to
construction, rehabilitation or capital improvements.  Those funds totaled $2,532,975 and $1,374,813 as of
December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

5. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment consisted of the following at December 31:P
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2018 Additions Transfers Disposals 2019

Land 3,139,809$     - - - 3,139,809      

Plant and equipment 182,107,148   544,187         5,400,466      (706,339)       187,345,462  

Construction in

'   process 5,468,899       9,033,190      (5,400,466)    - 9,101,623

190,715,856   9,577,377      - (706,339) 199,586,894  

Less accumulated

'   depreciation (73,050,245)    (4,543,684)    - 610,703 (76,983,226)  

117,665,611$ 5,033,693      - (95,636) 122,603,668  

2017 Additions Transfers Disposals 2018

Land 3,139,809$     - - - 3,139,809      

Plant and equipment 170,560,341   2,588,319      10,826,611    (1,868,123)    182,107,148  

Construction in

'   process 10,785,876     5,509,634      (10,826,611)  - 5,468,899

184,486,026   8,097,953      - (1,868,123) 190,715,856  

Less accumulated

'   depreciation (70,134,073)    (4,255,094)    - 1,338,922 (73,050,245)  

114,351,953$ 3,842,859      - (529,201) 117,665,611  

6. Long-Term Debt

In 2001, the Utility received a $10,000,000 program award available for approved construction.  The interest
rate on the 2001 revolving loan fund is at 2.25% and a financing fee at 1% of the outstanding principal.
Repayment of principal, interest and financing fee of the 2001 loan began in October 2005 with payments to be
made semi-annually over twenty years.

In 2008, the Utility received a $14,000,000 program award available for approved construction.  The interest
rate on the 2008 revolving loan fund is at 1.75% and a financing fee at 1% of the outstanding principal with
semi-annual payments of interest and financing fee during the project construction period. Repayment of
principal, interest and financing fee of the 2008 loan began in April 2012 with payments to be made semi-
annually over twenty years.

In 2012, the Utility received a $21,000,000 program award available for approved construction.  The interest
rate on the 2012 revolving loan fund is at 1.5% and a financing fee at 1% of the outstanding principal with
semi-annual payments of interest and financing fee during the project construction period. Repayment of
principal, interest and financing fee of the 2012 loan will begin in April 2016 with payments to be made semi-
annually over twenty years.

In 2016, the Utility received a $30,000,000 program award available for approved construction.  The interest
rate on the 2016 revolving loan fund is at 1.25% and a financing fee at 1% of the outstanding principal with
semi-annual payments of interest and financing fee during the project construction period. Repayment of
principal, interest and financing fee of the 2016 loan will begin in April 2021 with payments to be made semi-
annually over twenty years. As of December 31, 2019, $13,836,969 was left to be drawn on this loan.
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The Utility has outstanding revenue bonds from direct borrowings totaling $45,891,253 and $42,621,950 for 
the years ending December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. The Utility has specifically pledged the revenues 
of the utility system for the repayment of the bonds. The above notes payable contain provisions that in the 
event of default, the lender can exercise one or more of the following options: (1) Make all or any of the 
outstanding notes payable balance immediately due and accrued interest at highest post maturity interest rate, 
(2) Take possession of the collateralized properties, (3) Gain access to other assets of the Utility to protect the
lender’s interest, and (4) Use any remedy allowed by state or federal law. The Utility is required to establish
rates sufficient to pay the expenses and operation and maintenance of the water system, to pay the principal of
and premium, if any, and interest on all outstanding bonds to which system revenues are pledged as they
become due and make required deposits into the Sewer Depreciation Fund.  The Utility also covenants that the
rates shall, from time to time be increased to such an amount as will provide revenues at least sufficient for the
above purposes. The Utility was in compliance with all debt covenants for the years ended .

The following is a summary of the bonds payable activity at December 31:

2018 Additions Retirements 2019

Bonds payable 42,621,950$      5,376,804 (2,107,501)         45,891,253

2017 Additions Retirements 2018

Bonds payable 40,980,257$      4,069,853 (2,428,160)         42,621,950

Aggregate payments of the revolving loan fund balance outstanding are as follows for the years ending 
December 31:

2001 2008 2012 2016 Total
Principal:

2020 596,346$       663,639         906,560         - 2,166,545
2021 615,884         682,015         929,366         1,202,738      3,430,003

2022 636,063         700,900         952,745         1,229,951      3,519,659

2023 656,904         720,307         976,713         1,257,780      3,611,704

2024 336,489         740,252         1,001,283      1,286,239      3,364,263
2025-2029 - 4,020,297 5,397,158      6,881,143      16,298,598    

2030-2034 - 1,768,302 6,111,044      7,695,662      15,575,008    

Thereafter - - 1,315,955      10,446,487    11,762,442    
2,841,686$    9,295,712      17,590,824    30,000,000    59,728,222    
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Interest:

2020 87,548           159,791         434,140         - 681,479

2021 68,010           148,098         411,334         668,272         1,295,714

2022 47,831           136,080         387,955         641,059         1,212,925

2023 26,990           123,730         363,987         613,230         1,127,937

2024 5,468             111,038         339,417         584,771         1,040,694

2025-2029 - 352,167 1,306,342      2,473,905      4,132,414

2030-2034 - 38,946 592,456         1,659,388      2,290,790

Thereafter - - 24,725           779,562         804,287         
235,847$       1,069,850      3,860,356      7,420,187      12,586,240    

7. Pension Plan

Plan Description
North Little Rock Waste Water Utility Defined Pension Plan (the “Plan”) is a single-employer sponsored plan
administered by North Little Rock Waste Water Utility (the “Utility”).  The Plan provides retirement, death and
disability benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.  The Utility’s Board of Commissioners establishes
benefit provisions and all other requirements.  The Plan does not issue stand-alone financial statements, nor is
it included in another public employee retirement system plan’s financial statements. Participants are not
required to contribute to the plan.

Benefits Provided
The Plan provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members and their beneficiaries. Retirement
benefits are based on 2% of average annual compensation for the last five years of employment multiplied by
the employee’s years of credited service up to 30 years. Employees are fully vested after five years. Employees
eligible for retirement benefits after attaining 65 years of age with five years of credited service and are eligible
for early retirement after attaining age 55 with ten years of credited services.  The Utility is required to
contribute to the Plan at an actuarially determined rate.

The Plan does not provide for automatic cost of living adjustments (“COLA”) although the plan sponsor may
make changes. The plan has not given a retiree increase. Therefore, any increases are not substantively
automatic and no COLA is included in the determination of the total pension liability.

As of the measurement date on July 1, 2019, the Plan had 79 active employees, 35 inactive employees
entitled to, but not yet receiving benefits and 46 inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving
benefits. As of July 1, 2018, the Plan had 82 active employees, 29 inactive employees entitled to, but not yet
receiving benefits and 46 inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits.

Contributions
Actuarially determined contributions are determined based on actuarial calculations performed by an
independent actuary. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs
of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued
liability.

Contributions are based on the employee's annual covered salary. The Utility's contribution rate and
actuarially determined contribution for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, were 14.9 and 18.2
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percent and $575,000 and $698,563, respectively. Actual contributions for the years ended December 31, 
2019 and 2018, equaled $750,000 and $1,353,100, or 130.4 and 213.1 percent of required contributions, 
respectively.

Net Pension Liability
The Utility's net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the total pension liability 
used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The total 
pension liability in the actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, as of 
June 30 2019 and 2018:

The assumptions used were as follows:

Cost Method: The "entry age normal cost method" has been used in determining 
retirement cost. The method used for the July 1, 2013, and previous 
valuations was the aggregate funding method.

Amortization Method: The entry age normal cost method also requires an amortization method to 
be used in calculating the range of recommended contributions. The 
Unfunded Liabilities are amortized on a level of percentage of salary 
method and a range of 10 to 20 years is shown.

Pre-Retirement Mortality: RP 2000 table.
Post-Retirement Mortality: RP 2000 table.  The mortality table used for the July 1, 2013, and previous 

valuation was the Unisex Pensioner 1984 table (UP84).
Mortality Projection: Future mortality improvements were not considered in developing the 

suggested contribution for this report. The liabilities are significantly more 
volatile with regards to the other assumptions (i.e., investment return, 
retirement age, and turnover) than with mortality improvement.

Voluntary Terminations: T-2 table.
Investment Rate of Return: 6.5%, net of Plan investment expense, including inflation
Inflation: 3.0%
Expected Retirement Pattern: Retirement was assumed to occur on the Normal Retirement Date.
Assumed Investment Return: 6.50% beginning with July 1, 2017 (7.50% for prior years).
Salary Growth: 3.50% annually starting in 2017 (4.50% for prior years), including inflation

The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class as both 
of December 31, 2019 and 2018, are summarized in the following table:
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Asset Class Target Allocation
Long-term Expected 
Real Rate of Return

Domestic equity 49% 4.50%

Fixed Income 30% 1.75%

Real estate 10% 4.25%

Foreign equity 6% 6.25%

Cash 5% 0.00%

   Total 100% 3.53%

Inflation 3.00%

2019

Asset Class Target Allocation
Long-term Expected 
Real Rate of Return

Domestic equity 49% 4.50%

Fixed Income 30% 1.75%

Real estate 10% 4.25%

Foreign equity 6% 6.25%

Cash 5% 0.00%

   Total 100% 3.53%

Inflation 3.00%

2018

The long-term expected rate of return on Plan investments was determined using a building-block method in 
which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of Plan investment 
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the 
long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset 
allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. 

Single Discount Rate 
A single discount rate of 6.5% was used to measure the Total Pension Liability.  This single discount rate 
was based on the expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 6.5%.  The projection of cash 
flows, based on the assumptions made, found that the pension plan’s net position was not available to make 
all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.  Therefore, the single discount rate was 
calculated and applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.  

Changes in Net Pension Liability
Changes in the net pension liability for the year ended December 31, 2019, were as follows:P
re

lim
in
ar

y 
D
ra

ft



24
North Little Rock Waste Water Utility

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2019 and 2018

Total Pension 

Liability

Total Fiduciary 

Net Position

Net Pension 

Liability

Balance, July 1, 2018  $           14,296,995               11,611,424 2,685,571 
Changes for the year:

Service cost 372,460 - 372,460
Interest 934,150 - 934,150
Difference between expected

and actual experience (88,707) - (88,707)
Contributions—employer - 1,353,100 (1,353,100)
Net investment income - 798,804 (798,804)
Benefit payments including refunds

of employee contributions (595,829) (595,829) -   
Administrative expense -                               -   -   
Change in assumtions -                               -   -   
Other charges - (2,334) 2,334 

Net changes 622,074 1,553,741 (931,667)

Balance, June 30, 2019  $           14,919,069               13,165,165 1,753,904 

Changes in the net pension liability for the year ended December 31, 2018, were as follows:

Total Pension 

Liability

Total Fiduciary 

Net Position

Net Pension 

Liability

Balance, July 1, 2017  $           13,669,600               10,883,507 2,786,093 
Changes for the year:

Service cost 364,770 - 364,770
Interest 893,838 - 893,838
Difference between expected

and actual experience (64,567) - (64,567)
Contributions—employer - 702,970 (702,970)
Net investment income - 577,978 (577,978)
Benefit payments including refunds -

of employee contributions (566,646) (566,646) -   
Administrative expense -                               -   -   
Changes in assumptions -                               -   -   
Other charges - 13,615 (13,615)

Net changes 627,395 727,917 (100,522)

Balance, June 30, 2018  $           14,296,995               11,611,424 2,685,571 

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
The following presents the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 6.5 and 7.5 percent for 
the year ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. Furthermore, the following represent the net 
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-
percentage-point higher than the current rate:P
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Discount 
Rate

Total 

Pension 
Liability

Net Pension 
Liability

Discount 
Rate

Total 

Pension 
Liability

Net Pension 
Liability

  1% decrease 5.50%  $16,582,380    3,417,215 5.50%  $15,916,481    4,305,057 

  Current discount rate 6.50%    14,919,069    1,753,904 6.50%    14,297,295    2,685,871 

  1% increase 7.50%    13,492,115       326,950 7.50%    12,906,798    1,295,374 

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018

Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of Resources
For the year ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Utility recognized pension expense of $677,110 and 
$707,595, respectively. At December 31, 2019 and 2018, the deferred outflows and inflows of resources 
were as follows: 

Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of

Resources Resources 

Differences between expected and actual experience  $ 47,341 656,021 

Changes of assumptions 655,542 -   

Net difference between projected and

actual earnings on Plan investments 141,060 44,861 

843,943 700,882 

Employer contributions subsequent to measurement 750,000 -   

Total  $               1,593,943 700,882 

2019

2018

Differences between expected and actual experience  $ 60,868 752,527 

Changes of assumptions 801,218 -   

Net difference between projected and

actual earnings on Plan investments 350,629 61,450 

1,212,715 813,977 

Employer contributions subsequent to measurement 1,353,100 -   

Total  $               2,565,815  $ 813,977 

The $750,000 and $1,353,100 in 2019 and 2018, respectively, that are reported as deferred outflows of 
resources related to pensions result from contributions by the Utility made subsequent to the measurement 
date and will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the years ending December 31, 2019
and 2018.  Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: P
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2020 39,866$

2021 (20,602)

2022 52,307

2023 71,097

2024 22,436

Thereafter (22,043)

143,061$

Components of Net Pension Liability
The components of the net pension liability at June 30, 2019, were as follows:

2019 2018

Total pension liability 14,919,069$             14,297,295$             

Plan's fiduciary net position 13,165,165               11,611,424               

Net pension liability 1,753,904$               2,685,871$               

Plan fiduciary net position as a

percentage of total pension liability 88.24% 81.21%

8. Post-employment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB)

GASB requires that employers providing post-employment benefits other than pensions record and disclose
annual other post-employment benefit (“OPEB”) cost and a net OPEB liability in their financial statements
and disclose other information about their OPEB plans, including the unfunded actuarial liability.

Plan Description
The Utility’s defined benefit OPEB plan (the “OPEB plan”) provides OPEB for Utility employees resulting
from Arkansas statutes which provide that any municipal official or employee vested in any retirement plan
that has 20 years of service and attains 55 years of age may continue to participate in the Utility’s healthcare
plan after retirement provided that they pay 100% of the group premium.  The OPEB plan is a single-
employer defined benefit OPEB plan is administered by the Utility. Standalone financial statements are not
issued for the OPEB Plan.

Benefits Provided
The OPEB plan provides medical, pharmacy, dental, and vision insurance to participants after retirement
provided that they pay 100% of the group premium.

As the measurement date of December 31, 2019, the Plan had 85 active employees with no inactive
employees entitled to, but not yet receiving benefits and no inactive employees or beneficiaries currently
receiving benefits.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Liability
The Utility's annual OPEB cost and liability is calculated using the Entry Age Normal Actuarial Cost
Method as required by GASB 75. The Actuarially Determined Contribution and the Amortization Payment
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are not applicable due to the plan not being prefunded. The Utility recognizes a liability due to the implicit 
subsidy rate that is inherent of retiree healthcare costs by active employee healthcare costs when healthcare 
premiums paid by retirees and active employees are the same.

As of both December 31, 2019 and 2018, the actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $299,950 and 
$285,680, respectively, all of which was unfunded. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees 
covered by the plan) for the year ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, was $4,490,198 and $4,051,934, 
respectively, and the ratio of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability to the covered payroll was 6.68% and 
7.05%, respectively.  The actuarial assumptions included a 3.26% investment rate of return and projected 
annual salary increases of 2.80%.  

Health Insurance Premiums
Health insurance premiums are paid monthly and are the same for both pre-age 65 and ages 65 or older. 
Benefits pay secondary to medicare. For the year ended December 31, 2019, annual retiree health insurance 
premiums were $5,376 for a single coverage and $11,910 for family coverage.

Healthcare Cost Trend Rate
The cost trend numbers used in the analysis were developed consistent with the Getzen model promulgated 
by the Society of Actuaries for use in long-term trend projection The ACA excise tax will ultimately affect 
all plans. Due to the variability of the ACA excise tax by plan, the user needs to estimate the impact and 
adjust the trend. The excise tax could raise the average annual trend rate by 0.5% or more in each year.

Actuarial Cost Methods and Assumptions
The projection of future benefit payments for an ongoing plan involves estimates of the value of reported 
amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future.  Examples include 
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding 
the funded status of the plan are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past 
expectations and new estimates are made about the future.

The following represent the key actuarial assumptions:

Age Adjustment Factor: 1.987705
Average Retirement Age: 63
Employer Future Premium Contribution: Remain a level percentage of the total cost over time
Actuarial Cost Method: Entry Age Normal
Amortization: Method: Level Percentage of Payroll
Assets Backing OPEB Liability: None
Plan Asset Return: None
Bond Yield: 3.26%
Discount Rate: 3.26%
Measurement Date: December 31, 2019
Prior Measurement Date: December 31, 2018
Prior Year Discount Rate: 3.64%
Projected Salary Increases: 2.8%
Amortization Period: 20 years, if applicable
Percentage Participation: 6.00%
Healthcare Cost Trend: Healthcare costs are expected to increase annually 4.6% to 4.8% 
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North Little Rock Waste Water Utility
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for medical, 4.7% to 7.6% for pharmacy, 3.0% to 3.5% for dental 
and 3.0% for vision.

NOL and ADC: Calculated using the Alternative Measurement Method in 
accordance with GASB methodology.

Mortality Table: RP2000 Mortality Table for Males and Females Projected 18 
years; this assumption does not include a margin for future 
improvements in longevity.

Turnover Assumption Derived from data maintained by the U.S. Office of Personnel 
Management regarding the most recent experience of employee 
group covered by the Federal Employees Retirement System.

Changes in Net OPEB Liability
Changes in the net pension liability were as follows:

2019 Total OPEB Liability

Total Fiduciary Net 

Position Net OPEB Liability

Balance, January 1, 2019  $ 285,680 -   285,680 
Changes for the year:

Service cost 15,645 -   15,645 
Interest on OPEB liability 10,968 -   10,968 
Effect of plan changes -                                   -   -   
Effect of economic/demographic

gains or losses (33,223) -   (33,223)
Effect of assumption changes or

inputs 20,880 -   20,880 
Net changes 14,270 -   14,270 

Balance, December 31, 2019  $ 299,950 -   299,950 

2018

Balance, January 1, 2018  $ 170,593 -   170,593 
Changes for the year:

Service cost 15,645 -   15,645 
Interest on OPEB liability 9,047 -   9,047 
Effect of plan changes -                                   -   -   
Effect of economic/demographic -                                   -   

gains or losses 31,724 -   31,724 
Effect of assumption changes or -                                   -   

inputs 58,671 -   58,671 
Net changes 115,087 -   115,087 

Balance, December 31, 2018  $ 285,680 -   285,680 

Sensitivity of the OPEB to Changes in the Discount Rate and Healthcare Trend Rate
The following presents the OPEB liability calculated using the discount rate of 2.26 and 4.26 percent for the 
year ended December 31, 2019. Furthermore, the following represent the net OPEB liability would be if it 
were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the 
current rate:P
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Discount 
Rate

Net OPEB 
Liability

Changes 

from 
Baseline

  1% decrease 2.26%  $     365,950         66,000 

  Current discount rate 3.26%         299,950 -   

  1% increase 4.26%         249,024       (50,926)

The following presents the OPEB liability calculated using the healthcare trend rates 1 percent lower or 1 
percent higher than the current rate:

Baseline Trend - 1% Baseline Trend Baseline Tend + 1%

Net OPEB Liability $240,321 $299,950 $378,725

Change from Baseline ($59,628) $0 $78,776

9. Average Number of Sewer Users

The average number of residential, commercial, and industrial customers for the year ended December 31,
2019, was 36,688; 3,591; and 19, respectively.  The average number of residential, commercial, and industrial
customers for the year ended December 31, 2018, was 36,512; 3,533; and 19, respectively.

10. Insurance Coverage

The Utility was insured at December 31, 2019 and 2018, for general liability, automobile liability and all risk
replacement cost except worker’s compensation with the Arkansas Public Entities Risk Management
Association with claims administered by Gallagher Bassett Insurance Services of Little Rock.  The Utility was
insured with the Municipal League Workers’ Compensation Trust for worker’s compensation.  The policy
effective dates are for a calendar year for all aforementioned insurance policies.  The Utility was insured at
December 31, 2019 and 2018, with RSUI Indemnity Co. for blanket property coverage.

The following schedule lists the coverage and limits:

Type of Insurance Limits
1. General liability

a. General aggregate $350,000 per member/per policy period
b. General liability $350,000 each occurrence, bodily injury and property damage
c. Medical expenses $5,000 per person/$25,000 each occurrence loss

2. Automobile liability $100,000 each occurrence, bodily injury and property damage
3. All risk replacement cost $100,000,000
4. Blanket property coverage

a. Earthquake coverage $100,000,000
b. Flood coverage $100,000,000P
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11. Current Sewer Rates

The current sewer rates were established by Ordinance No. 8768 by the City Council of the City of North Little 
Rock on October 26, 2015.  The classes of users include residential, commercial, and significant industrial 
customers. The rates for each residential customer are computed based on the average monthly usage for the 
billing months of October, November, December, January, February and March.  The rates for each 
commercial customer are computed based on the actual usage.  

In the case of new residential customers for whom records are not available for the entire six-month period, the 
rates are computed on actual water usage until an average monthly usage can be calculated.  The minimum 
monthly charge for the first four hundred cubic feet or less of the average monthly usage is a rate equal to 
$17.52.

For each one hundred cubic feet, or fraction thereof, the monthly rate for residential, commercial and industrial 
customers is equal to $5.27 per one hundred cubic feet charged with a minimum of $17.52 per four hundred 
cubic feet for existing users.  Existing users are defined as users physically located within the city limits of 
North Little Rock or when they are physically located within the now existing territorial boundaries of an 
improvement district that received services from the system on the date of the enactment of ordinance 8768.  
Any user not deemed to be an existing user shall be deemed to be an outside user, but will have the same 
monthly rate as an existing user.

Significant industrial customers are defined by the ordinance as any non-residential customer which normally 
discharges wastewater to the system in quantities of 25,000 gallons per day or greater or whose wastewater 
contains or has the potential to contain toxic pollutants, restricted pollutants, or non-compatible pollutants. The 
minimum monthly charge and additional monthly charge as stated above applies.  In addition, penalties are 
assessed for biochemical oxygen demand, total suspended solids, ph, fats, oils and greases, and other limited 
parameters in excess of maximum limits established by the ordinance.  

12. Total Annual Billable Water

The total annual billable water for the year ended December 31, 2019, was 3,741,664 one-hundred cubic feet, 
comprised of 2,363,678 one-hundred cubic feet annual billable water for residential customers and 1,377,986
one-hundred cubic feet annual billable water for commercial customers.  The total annual billable water for the 
year ended December 31, 2018, was 3,903,275 one-hundred cubic feet comprised of 2,452,354 one-hundred 
cubic feet annual billable water for residential customers and 1,450,921 one-hundred cubic feet annual billable 
water for commercial customers.     

13. Contingency

The Utility had a fire that damaged or destroyed buildings and equipment in 2018. Management has been 
working with contractors and obtaining bids for repairs and replacements through year end and subsequent to 
year end and a final determination has not been made on proceeds from the insurance claim. As of December 
31, 2019, insurance had agreed to pay $1,646,219 for the damages and loss of equipment known at that time. 
As of December 31, 2019, $1,045,390 had not been received and is recorded as an insurance receivable. P
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14. Uncertainty

Subsequent to December 31, 2019, local, U.S., and world governments have encouraged self-isolation to 
curtail the spread of the global pandemic, coronavirus disease (COVID-19), by mandating temporary work 
stoppage in many sectors and imposing limitations on travel and size and duration of group meetings. Most 
industries are experiencing disruption to business operations and the impact of reduced consumer spending. 
There is unprecedented uncertainty surrounding the duration of the pandemic, its potential economic 
ramifications, and any government actions to mitigate them. Accordingly, while management cannot 
quantify the financial and other impact to the Utility as of March 31, 2020, management believes that a 
material impact on the Utility's financial position and results of future operations is reasonably possible.
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Original

and Final Actual Over

Operating Revenues Budget Actual (Under) Budget

Service charges 20,896,000$      20,065,939        (830,061)           

Service charges - industry 2,136,700          1,930,986          (205,714)           

Service charges - violations 400,600             482,928             82,328               

Users' forfeited discounts 333,500             322,271             (11,229)             

Permits and inspections 48,600               40,770               (7,830)               

Other operating income 59,100               136,916             77,816               

Total Operating Revenues 23,874,500        22,979,810        (894,690)           

Operating Expenses

Cost of sales 11,553,400        9,776,400          (1,777,000)        

Operating expenses 7,123,100          7,254,392          131,292             

Total Operating Expenses 18,676,500        17,030,792        (1,645,708)        

Operating Income 5,198,000          5,949,018          751,018             

Non-Operating Income

Interest and other income 140,600             965,831             825,231             

Total Non-Operating Income 140,600             965,831             825,231             

Non-Operating Expenses

Interest expense 1,196,000          1,100,864          (95,136)             

Total Non-Operating Expenses 1,196,000          1,100,864          (95,136)             

Increase in Net Position 4,142,600          5,813,985          1,671,385          

Net position - beginning of period 85,482,199        85,482,199        -                        

Net Position - End of period 89,624,799$      91,296,184        1,671,385          

North Little Rock Waste Water Utility

(See independent auditor's report.)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
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2019 2018 2017

Total Pension Liability

Service cost 372,460$         364,770           325,043           

Interest 934,150           893,838           927,980           

Benefit changes -                   -                   -                   

Differences between expected

and actual experience (88,707)            (64,567)            (449,454)          

Assumption change -                   -                   1,092,570        

Benefit payments (595,829)          (566,646)          (549,127)          

Net change in total pension liability 622,074           627,395           1,347,012        

Total pension liability - beginning 14,296,995      13,669,600      12,322,588      

Total Pension Liability - Ending 14,919,069      14,296,995      13,669,600      

Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Contributions - employee -                   -                   -                   

Contributions - employer 1,353,100        702,970           625,000           

Net investment income 798,804           577,978           858,710           

Benefit payments (595,829)          (566,646)          (549,127)          

Administrative expense -                   -                   -                   

Other (2,334)              13,615              14,211              

Net change in plan net position 1,553,741        727,917           948,794           

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 11,611,424      10,883,507      9,934,713        

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending 13,165,165      11,611,424      10,883,507      

Net pension liability 1,753,904$      2,685,571        2,786,093        

Plan fiduciary net position as a

percentage of total pension liability 88.24% 81.22% 79.62%

Covered employee payroll 3,859,063        3,843,866        3,675,206        

Net pension liability as a percentage

of covered employee payroll 45.45% 69.87% 75.81%

Annual money-weighted rate of return 6.6% 5.3% 8.6%

Note: A full 10 year schedule will be completed as information is available.  Valuation date is 

July 1 or 6 months prior to the end of the fiscal year in which contributions are reported.

Note:  Key actuarial assumptions and disclosures can be found in Note 7 of the financial statements

North Little Rock Waste Water Utility

Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios

For the Five Years Ended December 31, 2019

(See independent auditor's report.)
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2016 2015

289,654           273,092           

871,343           881,729           

-                   -                   

101,449           (786,365)          

-                   -                   

(536,212)          (510,798)          

726,234           (142,342)          

11,596,354      11,738,696      

12,322,588      11,596,354      

-                   -                   

600,000           642,000           

416,717           94,153              

(536,212)          (510,798)          

-                   -                   

(2,632)              (558)                 

477,873           224,797           

9,456,840        9,232,043        

9,934,713        9,456,840        

2,387,875        2,139,514        

80.62% 81.55%

3,621,125        3,288,939        

65.94% 65.05%

4.4% 1.0%
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Fiscal Year 

ending June 30,

Actuarially 

Determined 

Contribution

Actual 

Contribution

Contribution 

Deficiency 

(Excess) Covered Payroll

Contribution as 

% of Payroll

2015 577,750$         642,000           (64,250)           3,125,501        20.54%

2016 551,811           600,000           (48,189)           3,288,939        18.24%

2017 616,644           625,000           (8,356)             3,621,125        17.26%

2018 702,970           1,353,100        (650,130)         3,675,206        36.82%

2019 698,563           750,000           (51,437)           3,859,063        19.43%

Note: A full 10 year schedule will be completed as information is available.  Valuation date is 

July 1 or 6 months prior to the end of the fiscal year in which contributions are reported.

Key assumptions for actuarially determined contribution:

Cost method: Entry Age Normal

Amortization method: Level Percent of Salary

Remaining amortization: 10 years

Asset valuation: Market Value

Investment rate of return: 6.5% (7.5% for 2016 and prior) 

Mortality: RP 2000 Combined Healthy Lives

North Little Rock Waste Water Utility

Schedule of Contributions

For the Five Years Ended December 31, 2019 

(See independent auditor's report.)
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2019 2018 2017

Total OPEB Liability

Service cost 15,645$   15,645$   14,453          

Interest 10,968     9,047       5,951            

Benefit changes -           -           -                

Differences between expected

and actual experience -           -           -                

Effect of economic/demographic gains or losses (33,223)    31,724     -                

Assumption change 20,880     58,671     -                

Benefit payments -           -           -                

Net change in total pension liability 14,270     115,087   20,404          

Total OPEB liability - beginning 285,680   170,593   150,189        

Total OPEB Liability - Ending 299,950   285,680   170,593        

Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Contributions - employee -           -           -                

Contributions - employer -           -           -                

Net investment income -           -           -                

Benefit payments -           -           -                

Administrative expense -           -           -                

Other -           -           -                

Net change in plan net position -           -           -                

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning -           -           -                

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending -           -           -                

Net OPEB liability 299,950$ 285,680$ 170,593        

Plan fiduciary net position as a

percentage of total pension liability 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Covered employee payroll 4,367,587 4,051,934 4,312,328     

Net OPEB liability as a percentage

of covered employee payroll 6.87% 7.05% 3.96%

Note: A full 10 year schedule will be completed as information is available.  

Note:  Key actuarial assumptions and disclosures can be found in Note 8 of the financial statements

North Little Rock Waste Water Utility

Schedule of Changes in the Other Post-Retirement Benefit Liability and Related Ratios

For the Three Years Ended December 31, 2019

(See independent auditor's report.)
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2019 2018

Administrative and General

Advertising 5,832$                 3,348

Audit and other professional fees 33,500 28,959

Contributions 750 750                      

Employee physicals expense 409 1,053

Equipment repair and maintenance 10,906 9,592

Executive salary 137,968 137,707

Gas - transportation equipment 91 180

Holiday pay 20,347 19,373

Insurance - general 7,900 8,950

Insurance - group 73,032 75,741

Insurance - transportation equipment   2,889 2,778

Janitorial 4,380 5,224

Labor expense - office 260,203 276,696

Legal   45,354 21,523

Longevity pay 65,507 64,316

Maintenance and repairs - general -                       4,764

Master plan study 27,767 0

Miscellaneous 242,174 124,806

Miscellaneous leave pay 2,263 2,825

OPEB expense 14,270 115,087

Payroll taxes 45,209 45,623

Postage expense 1,812 1,844

Rent/lease expense 1,536 1,595

Sick leave expense 28,202 20,922

Subscription and dues 6,896 4,900

Supplies expense 13,504 20,618

Telephone 16,492 11,651

Training 14,049 9,004

Travel, meetings, and conventions 5,158 3,450

Uniform 351 350

Utilities 9,699 9,839

Vacation 45,535 40,153

Workers' compensation insurance 6,568 9,572

Total Administrative and General 1,150,553            1,083,193            

North Little Rock Waste Water Utility

Schedule of Operating Expenses

For the Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

(See independent auditor's report on other supplementary information.)
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2019 2018

Undistributed Expense

Depreciation - nonfunded 4,016,058 3,890,196

Employee pension 677,110               707,595               

Pension plan administration 10,975 10,845

Total Undistributed Expense 4,704,143            4,608,636            

Utilities Accounting

Billing and collecting - North Little Rock district 682,480 621,156

Billing and collecting - other districts 33,879 32,841

Depreciation 527,626               364,898               

Gas - transportation equipment 1,854 2,052

Holiday pay 5,859 5,789

Insurance - transportation equipment 1,685 1,389

Labor expense 120,123 117,713

Maintenance and repairs - transportation equipment 1,842 2,541

Sick pay 5,736 4,705

Supplies expense 2,340 2,822

Telephone expense 7,967 5,885

Vacation pay 8,305 10,630

Total Utilities Accounting 1,399,696            1,172,421            

Total Operating Expenses 7,254,392$          6,864,250            
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of the

Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

North Little Rock Waste Water Treatment Committee
North Little Rock Waste Water Utility 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type 
activities of North Little Rock Waste Water Utility as of and for the year ended December 31, 2019 and 
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise North Little Rock Waste Water 
Utility’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 31, 2020.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered North Little Rock Waste 
Water Utility’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of North Little 
Rock Waste Water Utility’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of North Little Rock Waste Water Utility’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether North Little Rock Waste Water Utility’s 
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could 
have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing 
an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do 
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.P
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Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

March 31, 2020 Certified Public Accountants & Consultants
North Little Rock, Arkansas
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major
Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance

North Little Rock Waste Water Treatment Committee
North Little Rock Waste Water Utility

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited North Little Rock Waste Water Utility’s compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect 
on each of North Little Rock Waste Water Utility’s major federal programs for the year ended December 
31, 2019. North Little Rock Waste Water Utility’s major federal programs are identified in the summary
of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions 
of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of North Little Rock Waste Water 
Utility’s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of 
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the 
Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a 
direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence about North Little Rock Waste Water Utility’s compliance with those requirements and 
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of North Little Rock Waste 
Water Utility’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, North Little Rock Waste Water Utility complied, in all material respects, with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its 
major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2019.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance
Management of North Little Rock Waste Water Utility is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In 
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered North Little Rock Waste Water Utility’s 
internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material 
effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program 
and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but 
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not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of North Little Rock Waste Water 
Utility’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material 
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the 
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

March 31, 2020 Certified Public Accountants & Consultants
North Little Rock, Arkansas
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North Little Rock Waste Water Utility

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

Program
Federal Agency/ Pass-Through 

Entity
CFDA 

Number

Pass-through 

Entity 

Identifying 
Number

 Amount 
Expended 

Clean Water State 

Revolving Fund

Environmental Protection 
Agency/Arkansas Natural 

Resource Commission 66.458

01068-CWSRF-

L  $       1,078,737 

Disaster Grants- 

Public Assistance

United States Department of 
Homeland Security/State of 

Arkansas Department of 

Emergency Management 97.036

FEMA 4441- 

DR Arkansas 97,761

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 1,176,498$      

Note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

1. Basis of Presentation

The above schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the “Schedule”) includes the federal award
activity of North Little Rock Waste Water Utility under programs of the federal government for the year
ended December 31, 2019. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).
Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of North Little Rock Waste
Water Utility, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or
cash flows of North Little Rock Waste Water Utility.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures
are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of
expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

3. Indirect Cost Rate

North Little Rock Waste Water Utility has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate
allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

P
re

lim
in
ar

y 
D
ra

ft



42
North Little Rock Waste Water Utility

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

Summary of Auditor’s Results
Financial Statements
1.The opinion expressed in the independent accountants’ report was:

Unmodified Qualified Adverse Disclaimed

2. The independent accountants’ report on internal control over financials reporting described: 

3. Noncompliance considered material to the financial statements was disclosed by the audit:
  

Federal Awards
4. The independent accountants’ report on internal control over compliance with requirements         

applicable to major federal awards programs described: 

5. The opinion expressed in the independent accountants’ report on compliance with requirements        
applicable to major federal awards was: 

Unmodified Qualified Adverse Disclaimed

6. The audit disclosed findings required to be reported by 2 CFR 200.516?

7. The Utility’s major program was the Clean Water State Revolving Fund 66.458 program. 

8. The threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs as defined in OMB 2 CFR 
200.501 was $750,000.

9. The Utility qualified as a low-risk auditee as that term is defined in 2 CFR 200.520?

Material weakness(es)? Yes No
Significant deficiency(s) noted that are not considered to 
be a material weakness(es)? Yes None reported

Yes No

Material weakness(es)? Yes No
Significant deficiency(s) noted that are not considered to 
be a material weakness(es)? Yes None reported

Yes No

Yes No
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North Little Rock Waste Water Utility
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

Findings Required to be Reported by Government Auditing Standards

Reference Number Finding Questioned Costs

No matters are reportable.

Findings Required to be Reported by 2 CFR 200.500

Reference Number Finding Questioned Costs

No matters are reportable.
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North Little Rock Waste Water Utility
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
Findings Required to be Reported by Government Auditing Standards

Reference Number Finding Questioned Costs

No matters are reportable.

Findings Required to be Reported by 2 CFR 200.500

Reference Number Finding Questioned Costs

An audit under the Uniform Guidance was not conducted for 2018.
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